
April 09, 2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Agenda 

 

Bedford County Board of Commissioners 

Commissioner Board Meeting 

Date: Tuesday, April 09, 2024  

Time: 7:00 PM 

Location: Bedford County Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor, Courtroom 

Agenda 

Call to Order: Chairman, Mayor Chad D. Graham 

Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance 

Open Meeting: Sheriff Austin Swing 

Roll Call: County Clerk Donna Thomas 

Minutes Approval: 

1. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes from March 12, 2024 - Placed on the agenda 

without a recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee (unanimous).  

Public Comment Period: 

Elections & Confirmations: 

2. Elect Notaries for April 2024 - Placed on the agenda by the Rules & Legislative Committee 

(unanimous). 

3. Board of Equalization Appointments 

4. Building Code of Appeals Appointments 

5. Planning Commission Appointments 

Presentations:  None. 

Resolutions: 

6. Resolution 24-15 - A Resolution Urging Expedited Completion of the Shelbyville Bypass, put 

forth by Commissioner John Boutwell with endorsement (4-0) of the Rules and Legislative 

Committee. 

Additional Items by Standing Committees: 

Rules and Legislative Committee:  None. 

Law Enforcement Committee:  None. 

Courthouse and Property Committee:  None. 

Financial Management Committee: 

7. BOE Budget Amendment No. 3 - Deferred at March 12, 2024 Commission Meeting. 

8. BOE Budget Amendment No. 4 

9. County Budget Amendment No. 3 

10. Quadient Postage Meter Contract for Finance Department 

Q3 Reports: 

11. Clerk & Master 

Circuit Court Clerk/Driving School Director 

County Clerk 

Director of Schools 

Economic Development 

Election Registrar 

Highway Superintendent 

Property Assessor 

Trustee 

Other Business: 

Announcements 

Adjourn 

                         /s/ Chad D. Graham        

Chad D. Graham, Bedford County Mayor 

 

1



File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes from March 12, 2024 - Placed on the agenda without a 

recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee (unanimous). 

2



Bedford County Board of Commissioners
Commissioner Board Meeting
Date: Tuesday, March 12,2024
Time: 7 :00 PM
Location: Bedford County Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor, Courtroom

Minutes
Call to Order: Chairman, Mayor Chad D. Graham
Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
Open Meeting: Sheriff Austin Swing
Roll Call: County Clerk Donna Thomas

PRESENT
Bill Anderson
John Boutwell
Jason Boyette
Janice Brothers
Anita Epperson
BiffFarrar
Drew Hooker
Scott Johnson
Eric Maddox
Diane Neeley
Sylvia Pinson
Julie Sanders
Tony Smith
Adam Thomas
Mark Thomas
Troy Thompson
Greg Vick
Linda Yockey

Minutes Approval:
1. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes from February 13,2024 - Placed on the agenda

without a recommendation by Rules & Legislative Committee (unanimous).

Mark Thomas made a motion to approve. Seconded by Epperson. Passed by voice vote.

Public Comment Period:

No comments.

Elections & Confirmations:

2. Elect Notaries for April 2024 - Placed on agenda by the Rules & Legislative Committee
(unanimous).

Boutwell made a motion to approve. Seconded by Pinson. Passed by voice vote.
BEDFORD COUNTY CLERK

DONNA THOMAS COUNTY CLERK
100 PUBLIC SQ STH 104
SHELBYVILLBTN 37160

Telephone 931-684-1921
Pax 931-685-9590

Notaries to be elected March 12,2024

REBEKKAH BEARO-
TAMMY BEARDEN
JASON PBOaO
REBECCA BOSHEERS
LISAM CARDEN
JENNIFER M DOUGHERTY
JAMES E FARRAR

TRISHA HENEGAR
KELLI D KING
AMY MITCHELL
KENNETH PEREZ
HELENCWHARTON
ZACHARY 5 ZEIS

3. Adult Entertainment Board Appointments

Graham put forth Linda Yockey, Jason Boyette, Neil Watson, Benita Caldwell, and Connie
Hasty.
Mark Thomas made a motion to approve. Seconded by Anderson. Passed by voice vote.

Presentations: None.

Resolutions:
4. Resolution No. 24-14 - Community Development Block Grant-Placed on the agenda by the

Financial Management Committee.

Epperson made a motion to approve. Seconded by Anderson. Passed by voice vote.
March 12,2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes

1

3

Item 1.



RESOLUTION No. 24-14

WHEREAS, Bedford County, Tennessee is eligible for funds under the: State of
Tennessee "Small Cities" Community Development Block Grant Program; and

WHEREAS, the Town of NolllWldy bas several streets that are experiencing
severe asphalt roadway deterioration and urgently need to be repaired; and

WHEREAS, the: Town of Normandy was unable to improve all of the streets from
their Phase I: Nonnandy COBO Street lmprovemcnt Project: and

WHEREAS, the: Bedford County in partnership with the: Town of Nonnandy
wishes to make an application to complete these much needed improvements;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT

The County Mayor be authorized and directed to execute and submit an
application for funds to the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community
Development in the amount of $230,000.

The County Mayor be authorized and directed to enter into all necessary
agreements to receive and administer such grant funds.

The total cost of the project is $280,488. The balance of $50,488 or 18% (using
Three Star points) in local matching contribution will be provided by the Town
of Nonnandy.

PASSEIN\J~D SO ORDERED THIS 12t1t DAY OF MARCH, 2024.

/7LfJ.£--
~O.Oraham
County Mayor

RESOLUTION O~ -\ .t;;Io~~

WHEREAS, 1he Town of Nonnrn.1y, TeMeIIIII!eis eligible for funds tIlder 1he
Slate ofTennessce '"Small Cities" <..:ommunityDevelopmem Btock <.irantProgram; and

WHEREAS, 9I!Y8I'II streets In 1he city Iimhs ere experiencing sewre 8IPhaIt
rta!waydeterioration SId urgentlyneed b be repaired; SId

WHER EAS,1heTown of Normniy was II1IIbIe10 II1'"CIrOVeall of 1heSIreeiI fran
their Phase I:NoIminjy CDBG SIreet IITC)I'OYt!ITIJ1Project: SId

WHEREAS, 1he Bedford CoIIlty In par1neIShlp wllh 1he Town of Norr1w\dy
wishes 10make III ~llcaIlon ., arrolele 1hese rru;h ~ IfTlII'OvtrnenIS;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT

The total oost of 1he project is not 10exceed $280,488.Bedford County has
agreed., apply for $230,(0) In CDBG fulds or 82'" of 1he!Dlal projed cost
The bailllc:e of $50,488or 18'" (ISIng Three SW points) In IocallT1ltching
contribution will be provided by 1heTown of Normandy.

PASSED AND SO ORDERED THIS 15th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024.

~,W~)
CM1es Whitaker
Mayor

Additional Items by Standing Committees:

Rules and Legislative Committee: None.

Law Enforcement Committee: None.

Courthouse and Property Committee:

5. Surplus Property - Fire Dept. Vehicles-Recommendation that both 1967 Jeeps be sold as is, with
no titles, and that theproceeds for the 1982 Sutphen will go to Unionville VolunteerFire
Department - Station 2 account, managed by BCFD.

Hooker made a motion to approve. Seconded by Epperson. Passed by voice vote.

March 12,2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner BoardMeeting Minutes 4

Item 1.



1967 Kaiser Jeer motor OK NO title 260

1967 Kaiser Jeer motor OK NO title 220

1982 Sutphen bad motor with title 222

Financial Management Committee:

6. County Budget Amendment No.2

Brothers made a motion to approve. Seconded by Yockey. Passed by voice vote.

A copy of the Budget Amendment is onfile in the Clerk's office.

7. BOE Budget Amendment No.3

Sm ith made a motion to approve. Seconded by Mark Thomas. Hooker made a motion to defer
until his questions could be answered. Seconded by Maddox. Smith and Thomas
agreed. Motion to defer passed by voice vote.

8. Surplus Property - BOE

March 12,2024 Board of Commissioners Commissioner Board Meeting Minutes

t')'n

5

Item 1.



_,,, -

Hooker made a motion to approve. Seconded by Pinson. Passed by voice vote.

The list of surplus items is onfile in the Clerk's office.
9. Surplus Property - County

Yockey made a motion to approve. Seconded by Brothers. Passed by voice vote.

Sent From: __ __;:E::_:lcc.::,:l;,::io::_nC::;;;"";,::m,::;":.::'is:::.;si:;:,:on.:____

ITEMS SENTTO HEDt'ORI>COUNTYSURPLUSTO ut:TRANSFERREJ)ORSOli>

Dale:

0SurplUI OScI'llP OTraaS£er

Site: _

·Status c...ldo:. (~'''k\ N...NvIOpef.m&c,\UKNm-Qp¢nthn, CondtU<JnUnkoo"ftJ
Cankdivickd.c. IS IkmH("'kI~·IO.Q,l·N,l.-lJNK

o

o
Gov0... 1. LabelII Item ()e,ocrlplioft

hard side spinncr luggage
Qua.l:ity MFR I Model Suial No. UareodeII ·S'ol.'

11 Iraveler's choice ()

o
o
(1

Sur~rvi50r/Prin('ipal: ...:S.:::·u:::"':::mc:.:,".:;:l:.,:C\',;:;(!I,;:;'Ct::;lC---- CnRlaelNumber: ;;;.;9_':..:.1...:;,6;;;.;84;..;·0;,;:.53;,.;1__ -

Other Business: None

Announcements

• Vick remarked on data provided by John Boutwell regarding Bedford County schools. The data
shows that 32% of students live in poverty, 28% are Hispanic, and 14%speak limited English.
Current spending is $9114 per student, which is the lowest in the region.

• County offices will be closed on March 29, Good Friday. Convenience centers will be open on
Saturday, March 30.

• Daffodil Day, March 16 in Bell Buckle.

Hooker made a motion to recess for an attorney-client meeting. Seconded by Maddox. Motion to recess
passed by voice vote.

Adjourn

After the recess Graham called the meeting back to order and a motion was made to adjourn at 8:17p.m.

Attestation

I certify that the minutes were completed on the 15th day of March 2024 and delivered to the Bedford
CountyMayor's office.

DonnaThomas
BedfordCountyClerk

I certify that I received these minutes on the 15 day of March 2024.

Cj([)Jk_--
ChadGraham
BedfordCountyMayor

6

Item 1.



File Attachments for Item:

6. Resolution 24-15 - A Resolution Urging Expedited Completion of the Shelbyville Bypass, put forth by 

Commissioner John Boutwell with endorsement (4-0) of the Rules and Legislative Committee.

7



 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION No. 24-15 

Bedford County Resolution Urging Expedited Completion of the Shelbyville Bypass 

WHEREAS, the completion of the new Shelbyville Bypass (State Route 437) from US 41-North/State 

Route 16 to Highway 231 has significantly contributed to the mobility, economic development, and safety 

of Bedford County; 

WHEREAS, the Shelbyville Bypass was designed to enhance access to industrial developments within 

Bedford County and provide an alternate route for commercial traffic, thus relieving congestion in 

downtown Shelbyville; and  

WHEREAS, the ongoing expansion and development projects in the vicinity of the Shelbyville Bypass, 

such as the new Cartwright Elementary School, the TCAT-Shelbyville campus, the Uncle Nearest Premium 

Whiskey distillery expansion, Tennessee Downs Auto Club track, and Vanderbilt Bedford Hospital, 

indicate a substantial increase in economic activity and population growth in the 231 Highway North area; 

and 

WHEREAS, projections based on population growth trends indicate a significant increase in student 

enrollment in Bedford County schools, necessitating the need for adequate transportation infrastructure to 

support the growing population; and    

WHEREAS, the completion of the Shelbyville Bypass expansion from Highway 231 North to Highway 

41-A North would further improve traffic flow, enhance connectivity, and accommodate the anticipated 

increase in vehicular traffic associated with the aforementioned development projects and population 

growth;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Bedford County Board of Commissioners: 

1. The Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) is hereby urged to expedite the completion 

of the Shelbyville Bypass expansion from Highway 231 North to Highway 41-A North, in order to 

accommodate the growing transportation needs of Bedford County and facilitate continued 

economic development.   

2. TDOT is further urged to prioritize funding and resources necessary for the timely completion of 

this critical infrastructure project, recognizing its significance in supporting the current and future 

growth of Bedford County.  

This resolution shall be transmitted to the Tennessee Department of Transportation Commissioner, 

Butch Eley, as well as relevant state and local officials, to express the urgent need for action on this 

matter. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Bedford County Board of Commissioners remains committed 

to working collaboratively with state and local stakeholders to ensure the timely and successful completion 

of the Shelbyville Bypass expansion for the benefit of all residents and businesses in Bedford County. 

 

PASSED AND SO ORDERED THIS _____ DAY OF _________________, 2024. 

 

__________________________________ 

Chad Graham, County Mayor  

 

 

__________________________________ 

Donna Thomas, County Clerk  

8

Item 6.



File Attachments for Item:

7. BOE Budget Amendment No. 3 - Deferred at March 12, 2024 Commission Meeting.

9



10

Item 7.



11

Item 7.



12

Item 7.



13

Item 7.



14

Item 7.



15

Item 7.



16

Item 7.



17

Item 7.



18

Item 7.



19

Item 7.



20

Item 7.



21

Item 7.



22

Item 7.



23

Item 7.



24

Item 7.



25

Item 7.



26

Item 7.



27

Item 7.



28

Item 7.



29

Item 7.



30

Item 7.



31

Item 7.



32

Item 7.



33

Item 7.



34

Item 7.



35

Item 7.



36

Item 7.



37

Item 7.



38

Item 7.



39

Item 7.



40

Item 7.



41

Item 7.



42

Item 7.



43

Item 7.



44

Item 7.



45

Item 7.



46

Item 7.



47

Item 7.



File Attachments for Item:

8. BOE Budget Amendment No. 4

48



49

Item 8.



50

Item 8.



51

Item 8.



52

Item 8.



53

Item 8.



54

Item 8.



55

Item 8.



56

Item 8.



57

Item 8.



58

Item 8.



59

Item 8.



60

Item 8.



61

Item 8.



62

Item 8.



63

Item 8.



64

Item 8.



65

Item 8.



66

Item 8.



67

Item 8.



68

Item 8.



69

Item 8.



70

Item 8.



71

Item 8.



72

Item 8.



73

Item 8.



74

Item 8.



75

Item 8.



76

Item 8.



77

Item 8.



78

Item 8.



79

Item 8.



80

Item 8.



81

Item 8.



82

Item 8.



83

Item 8.



84

Item 8.



85

Item 8.



86

Item 8.



File Attachments for Item:

9. County Budget Amendment No. 3

87



88

Item 9.



89

Item 9.



90

Item 9.



91

Item 9.



92

Item 9.



93

Item 9.



94

Item 9.



95

Item 9.



96

Item 9.



97

Item 9.



98

Item 9.



99

Item 9.



100

Item 9.



101

Item 9.



102

Item 9.



103

Item 9.



104

Item 9.



105

Item 9.



106

Item 9.



107

Item 9.



108

Item 9.



109

Item 9.



110

Item 9.



111

Item 9.



112

Item 9.



113

Item 9.



114

Item 9.



115

Item 9.



116

Item 9.



117

Item 9.



118

Item 9.



119

Item 9.



120

Item 9.



121

Item 9.



122

Item 9.



123

Item 9.



124

Item 9.



125

Item 9.



126

Item 9.



127

Item 9.



128

Item 9.



129

Item 9.



130

Item 9.



131

Item 9.



132

Item 9.



133

Item 9.



134

Item 9.



135

Item 9.



136

Item 9.



137

Item 9.



138

Item 9.



139

Item 9.



140

Item 9.



141

Item 9.



142

Item 9.



143

Item 9.



144

Item 9.



145

Item 9.



146

Item 9.



147

Item 9.



148

Item 9.



149

Item 9.



150

Item 9.



151

Item 9.



152

Item 9.



153

Item 9.



154

Item 9.



155

Item 9.



156

Item 9.



157

Item 9.



File Attachments for Item:

10. Quadient Postage Meter Contract for Finance Department

158



159

Item 10.



160

Item 10.



File Attachments for Item:

11. Clerk & Master

Circuit Court Clerk/Driving School Director

County Clerk

Director of Schools

Economic Development

Election Registrar

Highway Superintendent

Property Assessor

Trustee

161



 

Bedford County Election Commission 

100 Public Square West, Basement 

Shelbyville, TN 37160 

Daniel Robbins (R), Chairman                   Phone (931)   684-0531               Summer Leverette, Administrator  

Connie Crafton (D), Secretary   Fax   (931)  685-0975                     
Bob York  (R), Member                                          

Wayne Tucker (D), Member 

Maleah Claxton  (R), Member   
April 1, 2024 

 
 

QUARTERLY REPORT 
 
 
Current registered voters including inactive       29,331 
 total active registered voters    27,642 
 total inactive registered voters     1,689 
 
New registrations   -  686 
Changes to registered voters   - 594 
Purged  -  316 
 
 
 
Qualifying deadline for the August 1, 2024, State Primary and Bell Buckle 
Municipal Election is April 4, 2024, at 12:00 noon. 
  
Early Voting for the August 1, 2024, Primary/General is  
July 12 – July 27, 2024. 
 
First Day to pick up petitions for the Normandy, Shelbyville, and Wartrace 
Municipal Elections is June 17, 2024.   
Qualifying deadline is August 22, 2024, at 12:00 noon.  
 
 

162

Item 11.



163

Item 11.



164

Item 11.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes Approval
	Regular Monthly Meeting 2024-03-12

	Item 6.	Resolution 24-15
	Resolution 24-15 Completion of Shelbyville Bypass

	Item 7.	BOE Budget Amendment No. 3 - Deferred
	BOE - Budget Amendment No. 3

	Item 8.	BOE Budget Amendment No. 4
	BOE - Budget Amendment No. 4

	Item 9.	County Budget Amendment No. 3
	County - Budget Amendment No. 3

	Item 10.	Quadient Postage Meter Contract for Finance Dept.
	Quadient

	Item 11.	Q3 Reports
	elections quarterly report
	Q3 Highway Dept Report

	Bottom



